Public Document Pack

AGENDA
LEISURE AND COMMUNITY SCRUTINY PANEL
Date:

Wednesday, 28 November 2018

Time:

2.00 pm

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Members:
Councillor

Mrs C L A Hockley (Chairman)

Councillor

Mrs L E Clubley (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors

Mrs S M Bayford
S Dugan
J M Englefield
M J Ford, JP
Mrs K K Trott

Deputies:

K A Barton
R H Price, JP

Page 1

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Leisure and Community Scrutiny
Panel meeting held on the 07 November 2018.

3.

Chairman's Announcements

4.

Declarations of Interest and Disclosures of Advice or Directions
To receive and declarations of interest from Members in accordance with the
Standing Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct and disclosures of advice or
directions received from Group Leaders or Political Groups, in accordance with the
Council’s Constitution.

5.

Deputations
To receive any deputations of which notice has been lodged.

6.

Executive Business (Pages 9 - 10)
To consider any items of business dealt with by the Executive since the last meeting
of the Panel, that fall under the remit of Leisure and Community Portfolio. This will
include any decisions taken by individual Members during the same time period.
(1)

7.

Community Fund Application - St Mary's Church, Hook with Warsash
(Pages 11 - 12)

Ferneham Hall Vision Review (Pages 13 - 40)
To consider a report by the Head of Leisure and Corporate Services on a review of
the Ferneham Hall Vision.

8.

Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel Priorities
To provide an opportunity for Members to consider the scrutiny priorities for the
Leisure and Community Panel.

P GRIMWOOD
Chief Executive Officer
Civic Offices
www.fareham.gov.uk
20 November 2018

Page 2

For further information please contact:
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ
Tel:01329 236100
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the
Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 7 November 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

Mrs C L A Hockley (Chairman)

Councillor

Mrs L E Clubley (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Mrs S M Bayford, S Dugan, J M Englefield, M J Ford, JP and
Mrs K K Trott

Also
Present:

Miss T G Harper and Mrs K Mandry (for item 6)

Page 5

Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel

1.

7 November 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies of absence received at this meeting.

2.

MINUTES
It was AGREED that the Minutes of the Leisure and Community Policy
Development and Review Panel held on the 05 September 2018 be signed
and confirmed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no announcements made at this meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations received at this meeting.

6.

INTRODUCTION TO THE LEISURE AND COMMUNITY SCRUTINY PANEL
The Panel received a presentation from the Head of Democratic Services
which provided an introduction to the newly formed Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel and outlined the role and function of this new Panel (the
presentation is attached as Appendix A to these Minutes).
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Miss T Harper and Mrs K Mandry
addressed the Panel on this item.
In addition to the presentation, Members took part in an open discussion to
identify the key topics for the Panel, focusing on the priorities within the
Leisure and Community Portfolio. These items would be driven by the
Council’s Corporate Strategy which currently runs from 2017-2023.
Members discussed their priorities, to identify the top three for the Panel to
scrutinise. The following items were identified: 



Westbury Manor Museum
Ferneham Hall
Cams Alders Vision

Many additional topics were put forward by Members, including; the Abbey
Meadows Play Area, Youth Provision, Sources of Funding for the Leisure and
Community Portfolio and the Daedalus Open Space. A full list of all the topics
will be passed to Officers to compile a Scrutiny Priorities Plan.
Westbury Manor was identified by Members to be the top priority. The
Chairman will meet with Officers to draft a scoping report, the purpose of
Page 6

Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel

7 November 2018

which will be to extend an invitation to the Hampshire Cultural Trust to attend a
future Panel meeting to answer the questions put forward by Members in the
scoping report.
RESOLVED that the Chairman and the Head of Leisure and Corporate
Services: (a) discuss suggestions put forward by Members to add to the Scrutiny
Priorities Plan; and
(b) draft a scoping report enabling Officers to extend an invitation to the
Hampshire Cultural Trust to attend a future meeting to discuss
Members concerns with Westbury Manor Museum.

7.

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS
The Panel considered the Executive items of business which fall under the
remit of the Leisure and Community Portfolio, including individual Executive
Member decisions, that have taken place since the last meeting of the Scrutiny
Board on 04 June 2018.
The Panel considered the decisions shown at items 7 (1) to 7 (8) of the
agenda.
RESOLVED that the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel considered the
items of Executive Business.
(1)

Provision of Overflow Parking for Burridge Village Hall

No comments were received.
(2)

Festive Lights Scheme - Award of Contract

No comments were received.
(3)

Community Fund Application - Warsash Tennis Club

No comments were received.
(4)

Ferneham Hall

No comments were received.
(5)

Citizen of Honour Award Scheme - Special Group Achievement

Members expressed their happiness in One Community receiving the first
Special Group Achievement Award, and how honoured the charity are for
being recognised by the Council for the work they do within the Borough.
(6)

Community Fund Application - Fareham North West Community
Association
Page 7

Leisure and Community
Scrutiny Panel

7 November 2018

No comments were received.
(7)

Community Fund Application - Little Terrors Play Group

No comments were received.
(8)

Community Fund Application - St Mary's Church

No comments were received.
8.

LEISURE AND COMMUNITY SCRUTINY PANEL PRIORITIES
The Head of Leisure and Corporate Services addressed the Panel to discuss
the necessity of an extra meeting of the Panel, to consider an item on
revisions to the Ferneham Hall Vision prior to a report being taken to the 03
December Executive for approval.
A proposed date of the 28 November 2018 at 2pm was agreed by the majority
of Panel Members. It was noted that where possible, future additional
meetings would be held at 6pm.
RESOLVED that an additional meeting of the Panel be scheduled for the 28
November 2018 to consider an item on revisions to the Ferneham Hall Vision.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 7.25 pm).

Page 8

Agenda Item 6

Report to
Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel
Date:

28 November 2018

Report of:

Head of Leisure and Corporate Services

Subject:

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS

.
SUMMARY
One of the key functions of this Scrutiny Panel is to hold the Executive Portfolio Holder and
Senior Officers to account in the delivery of the service and the Improvement Actions
identified in the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Corporate Vision.
Members are therefore invited to consider the items of business which fall under the remit of
the Leisure and Community portfolio and have been dealt with by the Executive since the last
meeting of the Panel. This also includes any decisions taken by individual Executive
Members.
The relevant notices for decisions taken are attached for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Members consider the items of Business discharged by the Executive
since the last meeting of the Panel and make any comments or raise any questions for
clarification.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6(1)

FAREHAM
BOROUGH COUNCIL
2018/19
Decision No.
2068

Record of Decision by Executive Portfolio for
Leisure and Community
Wednesday, 14 November 2018
Portfolio:

Leisure and Community

Subject:

Community Fund Application - St Mary's Church, Hook
with Warsash

Report of:

Head of Leisure and Corporate Services

Corporate Priority:

Leisure Opportunities for Health and Fun

Purpose:
This report presents an application for funding under the Council’s Community Fund
Programme.
An application for community funding has been received from St Mary’s Church,
Hook-with-Warsash, for the sum of £3,400 to replace the boiler at the Church Hall.
The Hall is a popular facility, well-used by the community for various activities,
including Guides, an art group, a dance and theatre group, a bridge club and parties.
It is managed by a subsidiary committee of the Church, and all profits from its hire,
averaging £3,600 per year, are absorbed by the Church at the end of the financial
year.
The current boiler is ageing and is no longer fit for purpose.
The Church’s accounts for the year ending December 2017 listed £23,217 available
in unrestricted funds. However, the Church has a priority repair project for the
church building itself, which is anticipated to cost in excess of £50,000 in the coming
years. In addition, the Hall’s guttering, fascia and soffits are in need of repair which
has been anticipated to cost the Church a further £3,800.
Ward Councillor, Councillor Cartwright, is fully supportive of the application. His
fellow Ward Councillor, Councillor Ford, has declared his interest with the application
as he is a member of the St Mary’s Church Hall Management committee.

Options Considered:
That the application for £3,400 from Fareham Borough Council’s Community Fund,
submitted by St Mary’s Church, Hook with Warsash, be approved.

Page 11

Decision:
That the application for £3,400 from Fareham Borough Council’s Community Fund,
submitted by St Mary’s Church, Hook with Warsash, be approved.

Reason:
This application meets the agreed Community Fund criteria for financial support for
community capital projects.

Confirmed as a true record:

Executive Member for Leisure and Community (Councillor Miss S Bell)
Wednesday, 14 November 2018

Page 12

Agenda Item 7

Report to
Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel
Date:

28 November 2018

Report of:

Head of Leisure and Corporate Services

Subject:

FERNEHAM HALL VISION REVIEW

SUMMARY
The Council’s vision for a remodelled Ferneham Hall was approved by the Executive
on 9 July 2018. The vision is a living document and is designed to evolve as more is
understood about the needs of the public, hirers and potential operators.
A consultation on the Council’s vision took place between 17 August and 1 October
2018. Whilst most of the vision was widely supported, the proposal to reduce the
size of the main auditorium and the provision of a dedicated ‘Dance Studio’ both
received a mixed response.
A large proportion of the public and a number of industry experts and potential
operators felt that having 800 seats in the main auditorium would attract both more
shows and higher quality productions. Many also felt that having a Flexible Studio
Space would encourage a greater variety of uses and therefore more bookings than
a dedicated Dance Studio.
It is therefore proposed that the vision is updated to include a larger main auditorium
and the provision of a Flexible Studio Space.
The Ferneham Hall Vision Review report and updated vision document will be
presented to the Executive on 3 December 2018.
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Leisure and Community Scrutiny Panel consider and
comment on the Ferneham Hall Vision Review report and the proposed updated
‘Vision: Fareham’s New Entertainment Venue’ document.

Page 13

INTRODUCTION
1. The purpose of this report is to feedback from the recent consultation on the Council’s
vision to remodel Ferneham Hall into a new community arts and entertainment venue.
It will then seek approval for amendments to the vision.
Background
2. Ferneham Hall is becoming dated and tired, and its operating costs are escalating. In
response to this a vision for remodelling Ferneham Hall into a new community arts and
entertainment venue was approved by the Executive on 9 July 2018.
3. Officers then consulted on the vision and its proposals between the 17 August and 1
October. The consultation targeted residents, visitors to Ferneham Hall, regular hirers
of the venue as well as the wider entertainment industry. A number of discussions with
potential operators of the venue and other professional theatre managers also took
place.
4. The vision is a living document and is designed to evolve as more is known about the
needs of the public, hirers and potential operators.
Consultation and Engagement
5. The public were asked to take part in a survey
proposals within the Vision. A press release,
messages and bus stop posters were all used
consultation. It also received coverage in the
‘Stage’.

asking for feedback on the main
social media campaign, E-Panel
to publicise the new vision and
entertainment industry magazine,

6. Two static exhibitions in Ferneham Hall and Fareham Shopping Centre helped
encourage engagement, along with four manned pop-up exhibitions, one each in
Ferneham Hall, Fareham Shopping Centre, Locks Heath Shopping Centre and
Portchester Village Centre. In total 338 people completed a survey on the vision and its
proposals and the detailed results are in Appendix B.
7. Regular hirers of Ferneham Hall were contacted and asked to complete a more
detailed survey on the proposals. There were 14 submissions in total. During this time
there were also in-depth face-to-face discussions with 6 of the regular hirers.
8. Discussions were held with two experienced managers of successful venues of a
similar size to Ferneham Hall. In addition, six meetings were held with potential
operators of the venue who had expressed an interest during early market testing.
Feedback on vision and proposals
9. Respondents were generally supportive of the proposals in the vision. The following
part of the report outlines the responses from the different groups to the main
proposals in the Council’s vision:
Reducing the main auditorium to 400-500 seats
10. General Public: There was a mixed response to the proposal to reduce the main
auditorium to between 400 and 500 seats. Around half of respondents felt that this
would be too small, with many saying that it would impact on the venues ability to

Page 14

attract bigger and higher quality shows. Many of those who agreed to the reduction
also felt that 500 would need to be the minimum number of seats available to remain
viable.
11. Regular Hirers: Again, there was a mixed response received to this proposal. Most felt
that around 500 would meet their needs. However, two of the larger local amateur
organisations and the current providers of the annual pantomime, felt that between 400
and 500 seats would be too small, the latter pointing out the potential to generate
greater income by having a larger auditorium.
12. Industry Experts: It was felt that seating of 400-500 would make it hard for the
operator to put on commercial shows and generate sufficient income to reduce the
subsidy. Some producers will not take shows to venues where there are less than 800
seats as they cannot make enough money on ticket sales. Increase seating to
between 750-850 seats would help attract more quality shows and higher profile
performers. Introducing raised circle seating was mentioned as a possible way in
which to build capacity, and could easily be closed off for less popular shows, in order
to maintain ambience.
13. Potential Operators: Whilst all felt that they could operate with seating numbers of
400-500, most felt that seating of between 750 and 850 would enable them to attract
more, higher quality shows and artists. Most stated that having more seating could also
help reduce the amount of subsidy needed from the Council.
Improving the stage and backstage areas
14. General Public: The public were not asked about this proposal.
15. Regular Hirers: Many felt that the loading area needed to be improved. Others stated
that the depth of the stage could be increased as stage extensions were difficult to
assemble and light. However, this should not reduce the amount of space for the
storage of scenery (scene dock). More backstage changing facilities was a particular
concern of the dance groups. They have a lot of young people to manage and the
current changing facilities are not fit for purpose.
16. Industry Experts: They felt that a fly system would help attract more shows as many
production companies will not attend venues without one. A fly system uses rope lines,
blocks and counterweights to enable the quick, quiet and safe movement of curtains,
lights, scenery, stage effects and, sometimes, people.
17. The loading area at Ferneham Hall is poorly designed and is restrictive with regards to
loading and unloading. This should be improved as it would deter many production
companies from using the venue.
18. Potential Operators: Several operators advised that the addition of a fly system would
help attract a greater variety and quality of shows and would reap benefits over the
longer term – 15 years plus. One operator said that this would be a major
consideration/need if there were over 700 seats in main auditorium.
Retractable or fixed seating?
19. General Public: Whilst they were not directly asked about their preference for fixed or
retractable seating, ‘improved comfort and seating’ was the most common response
when asked ‘what could be improved at Ferneham Hall?’
Page 15

20. Regular Hirers: There was a mixed response to this with some hirers preferring the
flexibility of retractable seating. One of the Dance Groups stated that using the floor
allows disabled dancers to join in. Others felt that fixed seating was more in keeping
with a theatre and would provide better comfort and superior acoustics.
21. Industry Experts: It was felt that fixed seating would be preferable as it would give
more of a theatre feel in the main auditorium. Currently, due to the limited depth of
Ferneham Hall’s stage, some retractable seating is needed as stage extensions are
sometime needed for shows.
22. Potential Operators: Most operators would prefer fixed seating, however some said
a mixture of fixed and moveable would be preferable as this would allow for stage
extensions and standing space.
A smaller secondary performance space of 100 seats
23. General Public: There was general support for the smaller space although, some
people questioned whether it would be used.
24. Regular Hirers: Surprisingly there was only a limited amount of interest in this space
expressed by the regular hirers.
25. Industry Experts: It was felt that this space would be difficult to programme for as it
would be unlikely to make money for larger producers and would likely be too small for
local amateur groups. Rather than having it as an auditorium, it was suggested that it
could be an adaptable with removable flat seating to encourage a range of uses.
26. Potential Operators: Most operators would use it for comedy shows, films, filmed live
theatre, smaller audience shows.
Dance Studio
27. General Public: Whilst a majority were in support of the proposal, many said they
would like the space to be used for a variety of classes and not just dance.
28. Regular Hirers: Interestingly, there was not much interest in the studio from the two
dance schools that took part. One queried the viability of a sprung floor as it could only
be used for certain types of dance. Some amateur dramatic groups thought it could be
used for rehearsals if it was big enough.
29. Industry Experts: It was suggested that it should be a general studio, that could be
used for a range of events including hospitality.
30. Potential Operators: This should be used as a general studio and ‘dance’ should be
dropped from the name as this may put off potential hirers who want it for other uses
e.g. Brownies, exercise classes, hospitality.
Community rooms
31. General Public: Many liked the idea of a space that could be used for multiple
activities, however, there was some concern that the space needed to be affordable, or
no one would use it.
32. Regular Hirers: A number of groups saw the potential for these rooms to be used for

Page 16

rehearsals as well as meetings. However, they would need to be competitively priced.
33. Industry Experts: It was felt that if designed correctly, the rooms could add to the
flexibility of the venue and attract a range of uses.
34. Potential Operators: Most were supportive of the proposal and thought the rooms
could be flexible to encourage a range of uses if designed correctly.
Food and beverage
35. General Public: The most popular offering was a café that provided tea/coffee snacks
and simple meals e.g. pizza.
36. Regular Hirers: They were supportive of the proposal for food and drink facilities in
the remodelled venue.
37. Industry Experts: They felt that food and beverages could be available from 10am to
11pm with different offerings when shows were on e.g. something more substantial for
pre-shows in the evening.
38. Potential Operators: All felt that a full restaurant with chef is not needed, but simple
food such as pizza, mezze boards, sandwiches, cakes etc that bar and kitchen staff
could prepare would help attract footfall whilst keeping costs down. Two operators said
they would look to bring in a chain such as Costa or Starbucks.
Other feedback
39. According to the regular hirers, one of the key areas a future operator would have to
ensure is a clear and competitive hiring charge structure as many felt that they would
struggle to continue with further price increases. This feedback will be considered as
part of the Council’s discussions with potential operators.
Overall themes
40. There was clear support and enthusiasm for the Council’s vision amongst all the
groups consulted and engaged with. However, the feedback identifies the following
areas of the vision that could be updated to better reflect the needs of public, hirers and
potential operators:


Main auditorium size: The proposed size of the auditorium (400-500) seats would be
too small to attract a greater range and quality of shows. When combined with an
increase in seating, a fly system could help attract larger productions to the venue.



Second smaller auditorium: Changing from a second smaller auditorium, to a second
smaller flexible performance space that could be used for a range of activities and
events would encourage more use and be easier to programme for.



Dedicated dance studio: Calling the studio space, a ‘dance studio’ would put people
off hiring it for other uses.
Proposed changes to vision

41. In response to the overall analysis it is proposed that the Executive approves the
following minor changes to the ‘A Vision: Fareham’s’ New Entertainment Venue’

Page 17

document, attached at Appendix A:
42. Amend the text relating to the number of seats needed to attract shows (Ferneham Hall
Today paragraph’s 4 and 5):
43. ‘Ferneham Hall’s capacity of 708 seats is not high enough to attract the quality of
performers that many people want to see, with shows only reaching an average of 53%
capacity, or 372 seats.
44. Theatres with around 800 seats can generally attract higher profile and better-quality
shows, generating more income through tickets sales and ‘on the night’ spending such
as on food and drink.’
45. Replace ‘dance studio’ with ‘flexible studio space’ (A Vision for the Future, page 9 and
Design Priorities, page 11) to highlight the spaces potential for different types of activity
46. Amend the text relating to the main auditorium size to reflect feedback stating that
more seating would help improve the venues offer:
47. ‘Improve the comfort of the main auditorium and increase the size to around 800 seats
to attract better quality shows’ (Design Priorities, page 11).
48. Add ‘flexible’ to the priority of having a secondary performance space to reflect its
multi-use nature (Design Priorities, page 11).
Further work related to feedback
49. The current vision already reflects the need to improve the stage and backstage areas.
There are a range of types of fly system with each requiring a significant capital
investment. More research will be carried out, in consultation with the potential theatre
operators, on the feasibility of and the most appropriate fly system for the remodelled
venues’ needs.
50. Further discussions about the most appropriate type of seating for the main auditorium,
specification of the secondary auditorium and food and beverage offer will continue to
take place with operators during the procurement process.
Project progress
51. In addition to the consultation, all other strands of the Ferneham Hall project are on
schedule and progressing well:


The Members Working Group has been established and is overseeing the project.



The business plan created by AEA Consulting in 2015 has been refreshed and
updated.



The procurement process for a suitable leisure trust operator of the venue has begun,
with a number of experienced organisations expressing their interest. The new
operator is scheduled to be appointed in spring/early summer 2019.



Client Agent services to manage the design and construction process of the new facility
are due to be procured before the end of 2018. The Council anticipate that separate
design and construction contracts will be used.

Page 18

Conclusion
52. The Council’s vision and proposals for a remodelled Ferneham Hall was
enthusiastically received during the recent consultation and engagement activities.
Following analysis of the feedback it is proposed that the vision is changed to reflect
the need for the main auditorium seating to be increased and the proposed Dance
Studio be replaced with a Flexible Studio Space.
Enquiries:
For further information on this report please contact Lindsey Ansell (Ext 4567)
Appendices:

A: A Vision: Fareham’s New Entertainment Venue
B: Public Consultation Analysis

Background Papers:

Updated Financial Operating Model

Reference Papers:

Page 19

APPENDIX A

A VISION:
FAREHAM’S NEW
ENTERTAINMENT
VENUE

Page 21

PURPOSE
The purpose of this document is to set out the Council’s
‘Vision’ for a new arts and entertainment facility in
Fareham town centre to replace Ferneham Hall

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

2 22
Page

HISTORICAL
BACKGROUND
In the early 1980’s, Fareham Borough Council
decided to build an entertainment venue in
Fareham Town Centre. It was agreed that the
new venue would benefit from being located
next to Fareham Shopping Centre, the multistorey Car Park and the Library, creating a busy
‘entertainment hub’ in the centre of town.
The then new venue was designed to attract
a range of music, comedy and theatre shows
touring Britain at that time, as well as being
available for hire for amateur theatrical
productions, exhibitions, conferences, meetings,
dinner dances, parties and weddings.

In April 1982 Ferneham Hall was officially
opened by the Duchess of Kent.
The Hall boasted a 700-seater auditorium, with
retractable tiered seating to allow maximum
flexibility, and two additional function rooms
(The Meon and The Octagon). The new venue
also included a bar area, a box office and large
entrance foyer, as well as cloakrooms, toilets
and all the normal backstage facilities.
In its early years, it was a popular venue,
attracting well known entertainers such as
Ken Dodd and Cilla Black. It has always been
popular with local amateur theatre companies
and still attracts large audiences for the popular
annual pantomime. However, the aim of
also attracting the wedding, conference and
exhibition market has been less successful
over the years.

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

3 23
Page

FERNEHAM H
After nearly 40 years of service to the local community, the
fabric of Ferneham Hall is looking tired, dated and in need of
modernisation. The Council has maintained the building to a
good standard, with investment in the roof and boilers during
the last 5 years.
It is clear, however, that the layout and design
of the building is no longer fit for purpose.
Customer expectations have changed
significantly since 1982, and they are attracted
to large, air-conditioned buildings, with lots of
space and natural light, offering comfortable
seats with unrestricted views in the auditoria.
There is also the expectation of a café culture
where people can relax, meet, eat and drink in
an attractive location at any time of the day.
A great deal has been learnt about venue
“accessibility” over the last 40 years and
Ferneham Hall struggles to meet current
customer expectations. For example, there are
no lifts to the upper floors, the auditoria are
not designed to accommodate wheelchairs
easily, and access to the stage is limited
because of the need for steps.
It has become clear over the years that the
main stage is neither wide enough or deep
enough, which prevents many touring shows
from performing at Ferneham Hall. Ferneham
Hall’s capacity of 708 seats is not high enough
to attract the quality of performers that many
people want to see, with shows only reaching

AVERAGE TICKET SALES

53% 372
SEATS
an average of 53% capacity, or 372 seats.
Theatres with around 800 seats can generally
attract higher profile and better-quality shows,
generating more income through tickets sales
and ‘on the night’ spending such as on food
and drink.
THE OCTAGON ROOM is hired for events
and meetings but is not suitable to hold
smaller shows aimed at an audience of
around 100 people. There is a market for
such shows, including live film screenings of
national ballet, opera, and National Theatre
live productions, but the Octagon is unable
to accommodate them comfortably.

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

4 24
Page

HALL TODAY
THE MEON ROOM only really acts as
additional foyer space. Its location is
not ideal, it has no windows or natural
light, and has not proved to be a popular
meeting space for hirers.
The entrance foyer is quite dark, dated and
unwelcoming, and the box office/reception
area is hidden away behind a small oldfashioned glass screen. Today’s customers
expect a sense of arrival when they walk into a
venue, with easy access to reception staff, and
large bright areas to circulate. The bar area in
Ferneham Hall can get crowded very quickly,
and circulation space is limited because of the
location of the Meon Room.
Of concern, is the low level of customer
activity during daytime hours. Most shows
and events take place in the evening and, as a
result, Ferneham Hall is rarely used during the
day. As such, the space within the building is
significantly underutilised.

A great deal has been learnt
about venue ‘accessibility’
over the last 40 years and
Ferneham Hall struggles
to meet current customer
expectations.
The Council has ambitions to build a
community centre in Fareham Town Centre,
and the remodelling of Ferneham Hall
offers a real opportunity to combine a new
arts and entertainment venue with a busy
community facility.

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

5 25
Page

SHOWS
& EVENTS
The annual pantomime is a popular feature at
Ferneham Hall and numbers have remained
consistent over the last three years, which
included performances of Dick Whittington,
Sleeping Beauty and Aladdin. Average
audience numbers were around 430 per
performance, with approximately 17,500 tickets
sold each year over the duration of 40 shows.
Ferneham Hall continues to be a popular
venue to hire for local amateur theatrical
productions. Local groups such as the Fareham
Musical Society, South Downs Musical
Society, Stage One Youth Theatre and Havant
and District Orchestral Society have made
regular bookings over the last three years
resulting in approximately 30 performances
a year. In addition, the main auditorium is
regularly booked for 18 days a year by the
Fareham Dance Festival and All England
Dance Festival. A new arts and entertainment
facility would need to accommodate these
groups and attract more.

Customer reaction to touring shows and
productions is mixed. It is difficult to attract well
known acts as they tend to target their shows
at much larger venues in the neighbouring
cities. Some of the better touring productions
would like to visit Fareham, but consider the
size of the stage at Ferneham Hall to be a
barrier, and the backstage area of the main
auditoria is inadequate. The shows that are
booked by Ferneham Hall management vary
in popularity and there is always a risk to be
recognised when calculating potential ticket
sales. The current programme reflects more
traditional theatre style entertainment, tribute
bands, comedians and old school classics,
such as 1980’s artists, that generally has a
narrow audience appeal. As such, income and
attendance has remained static and therefore
it is considered a more dynamic and innovative
approach to programming is required in the
future to reinvigorate the venue.

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

6 26
Page

FAREHAM MUSICAL
SOCIETY
SOUTH DOWNS
MUSICAL SOCIETY
STAGE ONE
YOUTH THEATRE
HAVANT AND DISTRICT
ORCHESTRAL SOCIETY
FAREHAM
DANCE
FESTIVAL
ALL
ENGLAND
DANCE
FESTIVAL

18

DAYS BOOKED
A YEAR

30

PERFORMANCES
A YEAR

17,500
TICKETS SOLD
EACH YEAR

40 SHOWS

Hire of the main auditorium as a hall
(without seating) is less popular. Over the
last year the tiered seating has only been
retracted for 16 events, 3 of which were
for civic occasions such as the Election
Count, Mayor Making and the Fareham
In Bloom Awards. This raises the question
as to whether a new venue should opt
for the flexibility of retractable seating or
the improved comfort of (and less labour
intensive) permanent seating.

COSTS
It is important to note that, whilst the Council
is wholly committed to providing a modern
arts and entertainment venue in Fareham
Town Centre, there is a need to reduce the
annual operating cost of such a facility.
The Council’s revenue budgets are under
considerable pressure following major
reductions in Government funding over
recent years and there is a need for all Council
services to be cost effective in the future.
The annual operating costs of Ferneham
Hall were £396,200 for 2015/16, £423,400
for 2016/17 and £418,200 for 2017/18.

ANNUAL OPERATING COSTS

2015/16 – £396,200
2016/17 – £423,400
2017/18 – £418,200
The deficit needs to be reduced significantly
in the future and a key part of this vision is
the need to plan a new facility which could
be more commercial in its outlook and
reduce the level of annual subsidy provided
by the Council. It is believed that this could
be achieved through a combination of
increased income and by reducing costs.

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

7 27
Page

A VISION FOR
THE FUTURE

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

8 28
Page

We want to provide a busy community arts and entertainment
centre which includes daytime and evening activity, seven days
a week. We believe that this can be achieved through the
provision of smaller, flexible, meeting spaces, improved
catering areas and possibly a flexible studio space and
secondary, smaller performance space.
The stage and seating in the main auditorium need to be the
right size and design to attract a good range of touring
productions as well as being available for hire to local amateur
groups. We would like to see a more dynamic and innovative
approach to programming to attract a wider range of customers
to the venue. The annual pantomime is popular and we would
like to see this retained and developed as part of the overall
programme.
We want the interior and exterior of the building to be
attractive, modern and welcoming, and complementary to the
other new buildings within the Civic Quarter.
The new venue will be more commercial in its outlook and we
expect the annual operating costs to be low, with the ultimate
aim of breaking even.

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

9 29
Page

DESIGN
PRIORITIES
These are the main design
priorities that need to be
considered for a future arts
and entertainment facility

Improvements to the
exterior appearance of
the building, including
a welcoming entrance

Alterations to the foyer
and box office area to
provide a sense of arrival

Improved audience
facilities, such as toilets
and catering areas, in terms
of comfort, appearance
and overall experience

Demolition of
the Octagon lounge

Improved access within
the venue, including a lift

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

10 30
Page

In the interest of fuel
efficiency, individual parts
of the building to be lit,
heated and/or ventilated
independently

Improved cast/crew areas,
including the stage and
backstage, to support high
quality performances

The addition of community
rooms for hire and/or to
hold workshops, to enable
the venue to operate as
a busy community centre

Improved office space

Improve the comfort of
the main auditorium and
increase the size to around
800 seats to attract better
quality shows

A smaller, more intimate
flexible secondary
performance space (100
seats) including screen and
projector room

Options for retractable
seating versus
permanent seating

Aflexible studio space

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL | DRAFT VISION FOR FAREHAM’S NEW ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

11 31
Page

FIND OUT
MORE
Find out more about our vision at
www.fareham.gov.uk

Page 32

APPENDIX B
Ferneham Hall Vision Analysis – Public Survey
Introduction
338 respondents completed a survey that ran between 17 August and 1 October 2018.
The following outlines the main results.
What do you go to Ferneham Hall for?

Conferences
Venue Hire e.g. Weddings or Parties
Octagon Room - Comedy
Meetings
Octagon Room - Plays and Musicals
Other
Tea and Coffee at the Bar
Main Theatre - Dance Shows
Main Theatre - Comedy
Main Theatre - Plays and Musicals
0

50

100

150

200

250

When going through the comments, the following also came up for reasons why
people go to Ferneham Hall:
•
•
•
•

Tribute Acts/ Music (10)
Exhibitions (4)
Food Fayre (3)
Antique Fayre (3)

Page 33

300

How Often do you go to Ferneham Hall?

Every Day

Once a Week
Never
Once a Month
Less Often
A Few Times a Year
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

What Works Well at Ferneham Hall?
Many comments came up when going through the comments on what people
thought worked well at Ferneham Hall. Below are the main themes that emerged:

Bar
Atmosphere
Staff
Parking
Seating
Shows
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

What Could be Improved at Ferneham Hall?
Many comments came up when going through the comments on what could be
improved at Ferneham Hall. Below are the main themes that emerged:

Page 34

35

Prices at Bar

Layout

Dressing Room/ Backstage

Better Foyer/ Bar Area

Modernised

Comfort/ Better Seating
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Do You Have Any Comments About the Proposed Size of the Main
Auditorium?
Many comments came up when going through the comments about the proposed
size of the main auditorium. Below are the main themes that emerged:

Agree with Reduction

Concern with Reduction

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

The concern with reducing the capacity of the main auditorium is that Ferneham Hall
will be unable to attract bigger shows. Also, many of the comments that agree with
the reductions, believe It should be at least 500 seats.

Page 35

Do You Have Any Comments About Our Proposal for a Second Smaller
Theatre Area?

Seating Needs to be Tiered
Needs to be Adaptable
Concern Whether it Would be Used
Like the Idea of it Being Used for
Cinema
Good Idea
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

The comments in support liked the idea of a smaller space that could be used for a
range of different things such as dance performance, cinema and small productions.
Do You Have Any Comments About Our Plans for a Small Dance Studio?

As Long as Costs are Low

Not Sure it Would be Utilised Enough

If a Variety of Classes Could be
Available

Good Idea
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Many of the comments said that they would like the space to be used for a variety of
classes, and not just dance, such as Tai Chi, Parties and a range of Dance Classes
(Tap dancing, Ballroom etc.).

Page 36

Would You Consider Hiring Out the Dance Studio?
Yes
Don't Know
No
0

50

100

150

200

250

What Would You Hire It For?

Exercise Classes

Rehearsals

Dance Classes

Parties
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Do You Have Any Comments About Our Plans to Have Community Rooms for
Hire?
Include a Kitchen
Good For Evening Classes
Hire Prices Need to Be Reasonable
Good Idea
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Many of the comments like the idea of a space that could be used for multiple
activities, however, there was some concern that the space needed to be affordable,
or no one would use it.

Page 37

Would You Consider Hiring Out a Community Room?
Yes
Don't Know
No
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

What Would You Hire It For?

Workshops
Small Talks

Meetings
Functions
Charity Events
Rehearsals
Community Groups
Parties
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Do You Have Any Comments About Our Plan to Make the Venue More
Accessible?

More Accessible for Performers (i.e.
Backstage)
More Modern Disabled Toilets
Lifts Are Needed
Good
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Most comments agreed that the new venue would need to be more accessible, with
comments also agreeing there would be lift access to the seats.

Page 38

What Sort of Food and Drink Offer Would Attract You to the New Venue?
Lunch
Snacks
Pre-show/ Evening Meals
Café
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

What Could a New Operator Do to Get You to Use Ferneham Hall More Often?

Ticket Discounts
Low Ticket Costs
Good Rates

More Advertising
Modernised
Better Programme
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Many comments supported a better range of programming that supported more
variety than there is currently, also with bigger names.

Page 39

35

